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The original meeting house of 1786 was a T-shaped wooden—framed
structure with clapboard siding, gable roof, twelve-over-twleve windows
and a single entrance door. The major rebuilding and renovation of
1895 completely changed the appearence of the meeting house, while
retaining its basic form.

s I

The renovated building of 1895 which stands on the site today is

in the Shingle style. All doors and windows and their locations
are completely different from those of the 18th century structure, and
a tower, square in plan rises from the smth-east interidr:coxner of the
llTll.
EAR S SO U SO S SR A N (D2 L
The tower has two stories and a steeply-pitched hip roof. The
second story has an arched aperture with bowed balcony on each of its
four sides. This was intended to be a bell tower. Below the south
balcony is a small rose window. The first story features a tall arched
window on the east side and a double doorway on the south side. Over this
doorway is a wooden arch which encloses a semi-circular ornamental window.

The other entrance to the building is via a portico on the south side
of the west end. This portico features painted Doric columns to either side
of the opening. The portico completely encloses the soutrwest interior
corner of the original "T". A single doorway with a shallow arched window
overhead provides ‘access-to-the wést end -of the building.

The west facade has a single half-story window in the gable end and
a central four-part window -on the first -floor. Two cellhar-casemert
windows are at ground level. The east end of the building is identical,

except there-are no cellar windowsa' ¢ =~ = wiove wihie e -

-The ‘original front of the building, the south-énd of the "T" features
four ornate rectangular stained-glass windows on the first floor.  These
are symmetrically-grouped, the inner two being larger-than the outer two.
Rising above the inner two is a large wooden closed ornamental arch with
a semi-ciicular floral motif within. A wooden "keystone" tops this arch.

The roof and side of-the-building-are shkingled: - The foundation
and cellar walls are of brick.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sophia Bailey Memorial Chapel which now serves as a center of worship

for the 0Oak Grove—-Coburn preparatory school is of particular interest both
as an unusual architectural adaptation and as alink with the Quaker heritage
of the school and the community.

U G

In the mid 18th century a large number of Quakers from Nantucket purchased

wood lots along the lower Kennebec River as soon as the Kennebec Proprietors
By the 1770's several families hegan to occupy the
area, particularly in what later became the towns of Vassalboro and Dresden.
The latter, in fact, was at one time known as ''Nantucket Farm'.

began issuing valid deeds.

Many of the earlier residents of the Vassalboro area were attracted to the

fold of the Society of Friends and by 1786 their numbers were large enough: to
construct a meeting house near the river for a group known as the River Meeting.
(The enthusiasm was so great that by 1797 a second meeting House had been built

in East Vassalboro for the East Pond Meeting).

The River Meeting House, the first religious building in Vassalboro, soon

achieved sufficient importance that it became the site of the Quarterly Meeting
for the region, dividing from the Falmouth Quarterly Meéeting:"

With 'typical dedication to intellectual stimulation, theQuaker community

in Vassalboro determined in 1848 to organize a school for their children which

would provide education-of high quality through the upper grades.
the Oak Grove School opened its doors in 1850 to all children of the community.

To this end
The

first school builing was erected adjacent to the River Meeting House.

Now a private non-denominational ‘preparatory school,
passed through a number of phases.

the institution has
From 1923 until very recently it served as a

school Pr girls, but within the last five years it returned to its original
coeducational statue by merging with Coburn Classical Institute formerly located
in Waterville. It should be noted in passing that the school includes among its
alumni Rufus Jones (1863-1948), a lifelong professor of philosopy and ethics at
Haverford College and leading exponent of American Quakerism during his lifetime.

deeded to the school to be used as a chapel.
Mrs. Sophia D. Bailey, wife of Charles M. Bailey of Winthrop, offered to re-

construct the old building and render 1t sultable to the needs of the school
(See contlnuatlon sheet)

By the 1890's the number of Friends in the area had greatly declined and

the old Meeting House was sadly in need of repairs. In 1895 the building was

At the time of the transaction
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Although the frame of the original structure was retained, the exterior

fabric was radically altered and a tower and portico added. In addition,

the building was raised several feet to create a cellar for a new heating

plant. The interior, previously arranged in traditional Quaker fashion, was
radically changed to include space for organ and choir and for a single pulpit.
A combined Sunday school and lunch room was partitioned off and stained glass windows
were installed. All work was carried out under the direction of William.H.
Douglass of Lisbon Falls who was in charge of the other school buildings and

had been employed on many other important contracts by Mr. Bailey. The building
was dedicated on December 8, 1895, as the Sophia Bailey Memorial Chapel, Mrs.
Bailey having died during the reconstruction.

This Shingle Style adaptation of a simple 18th century Friends meeting
house and its associations with Quaker dedication to educational excellence
well deserves recognition as a building of unique qualities.



